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Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest expenses paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities
Payment for land use rights
Proceeds from disposal of
land use rights and property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of investment properties
Purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from capital reduction of
investment in a joint venture
Payment for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from sales of financial
assets through profit or loss
Increase in restricted bank deposits
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits
with maturity more than 3 months
Dividends received from
joint ventures and an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

od
Note

32

32

18

18

2018

goooo

RMB’000

3,110,451
(57,752)
(489,495)

2,563,204

(275)

71,388
(908,149)

(2,747)
(4,826)

60,000
(33)

(2,661,119)

56,253

(3,389,508)

2017
ooood
RMB’000

3,114,670
(93,562)
(568,345)

2,452,763

49,741
(994,012)
(6,331)
(462)
35,766

(60,000)

4,663
(500)

185,481

3,495

(782,159)
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Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Dividends paid to equity holders
of the Company

Net cash received/(used)
in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase

in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of the year
Exchange gain/(losses) on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

2018
0O ooooo
Note RMB’000
32 17,013,970

32 (16,361,483)

(619,402)

33,085

(793,219)

2,356,350

814

26 1,563,945

consolidated financial statements.

2017
ogoooo
RMB’000

11,062,327
(12,326,829)

(119,834)

(1,384,336)

286,268

2,076,839

(6,757)

2,356,350

The notes on pages 92 to 228 are an integral part of these
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at
fair value.
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards relevant to the
Group are mandatory adopted for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

o HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

. Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle

o Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers to

Investment Property”

. Interpretation 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration”

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

The following amendments of HKFRSs are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2018 and not relevant to the Group’s
operations (although they may affect the accounting for
future transactions and events):

Amendments to HKFRS 2 “Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions”

Amendments to HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

The Group had to change its accounting policies and
make certain retrospective adjustments following the
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

gooooooodoano 2

21 O0O00O0OO00O0O 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2110000000000 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

0oomn (Continued)

) OO0000000201801 (b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
oipoooooooooo and amendments to standards and interpretations
ooooooooooooo have been issued but are not effective for the
ooooooooooooo financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
oooo not been early adopted:

Effective for

gooooo annual periods
goooo beginning on
gooooo or after

gooopooo oo 201901010 (i) HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 (i)

0160

00000230 oooooo 201901010 (HK)Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income 1 January 2019

gooo Tax Treatments
0000oooo  oooooooo 201901010 Amendments to Prepayment Features 1 January 2019
0yooo 0ooo HKFRS 9 with Negative
Compensation

0000000280 DO00DO 201901010 Amendments to Long-term Interests in 1 January 2019

0o 0oooo HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
gooo Ventures

01500 201971010 Annual 1 January 2019
0170000 Improvements
gooo 2015-2017 cycle

oooono 00oooooo 201901010 Amendments to Plan Amendment, 1 January 2019
019000 00 HKAS 19 Curtailment or

Settlement

0ooooooo  ooooo 200001010 Amendments to Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
03000 HKFRS 3

000000010 ooooo 202001010 Amendments to Definition of Material 1 January 2020
goooooo HKAS 1 and
08000 HKAS 8

oooooooo  oooo 202201010 HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2022
0170

0ooooooo  oooo 0oo Amendments to Sale or contribution To be determined
gw0o gooooo HKFRS 10 and of assets between
gooooa goooaoo HKAS 28 an investor and its
028000 0ooooono associate or joint

venture

0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 0O00O0O000o0o00oodao 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 00O00OODOOO0OO 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
@ O0000000000 (@ Impact on the financial statements (Continued))
oo
20170 gooao 20170 go 20180
120 310 oo 120 310 gooao 1010
oooa 0 150 goao goooo ooo
31
December
2017 31
As December 1 January
originally HKFRS 2017 HKFRS 2018
000000000  Balance sheet (extract) presented 15 Restated 9 Restated

oooooooo Available-for-sale financial

o0oooooo assets (‘AFS”) 222,093 - 222,093 (222,093 -
gooooo Financial assets at fair
goooooa value through other
ooooooo comprehensive income
opooooo (‘FVOCT")
opooodd - - - 222,093 222,093
ooooooo Other payables and accruals
oooo 4,025,729  (1,369,209) 2,656,520 - 2,656,520
oooo Contract liabilities - 1,369,209 1,369,209 - 1,369,209
oooao Other reserves 2,384,476 - 2,384,476 (33,345) 2,351,131
gooo Retained earnings 5,561,338 - 5561338 33,345 5,594,683
oo
oooo
gooo 000150 gooo
Statement of
profit or loss
ooo and other
ooooooo comprehensive As originally
0O 000J20170 income (extract) — 2017 presented HKFRS 15 Restated
00 Revenue 21,296,534 (474,585) 20,821,949
O00000000  Seling and marketing expenses 5,153,798 (474,585) 4,679,213
lOO 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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) Equity investments previously classified as AFS

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) changes in the fair value of all its equity
investments previously classified as AFS, because
these investments are held as long-term strategic
investments that are not expected to be sold in the
short to medium term. As a result, assets with fair
values of RMB222,093,000 were reclassified from AFS
to financial assets at FVOCI and net impairment loss of
RMB33,345,000 was reclassified from retained earnings
to fair value reserve on 1 January 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from
1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. The new accounting policies
are set out in Note 2.11 below. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated as the
Group does not have any hedge instrument.
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B
he Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Equity investments previously classified as AFS
(Continued)

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed
which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
The main effects resulting from this reclassification are

ooooooooa as follows:
gooooog
o000 oooooo
0000d-201801010 Financial assets — 1 January 2018 AFS FVOCI

020170120310 00000 Closing balance 31 December 2017

goooooooo - HKAS 39

039000 222,093 -
oooDoooooood Reclassify non-trading equities from

gooobooobooo AFS to FVOCI

oopoooo (222,093) 222,093

0201801010000 00 Opening balance 1 January 2018

goooooooogo - HKFRS 9
gononoDO - 222,093
102 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(Continued)

(b)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Equity investments previously classified as AFS

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is

oood as follows:
gooooad gooono
ooo ooo
Effect on Effect on
fair value retained
reserves earnings
0201801010000 00O Opening balance 1 January 2018
goooobooo - HKAS 39
039000 (8,430) 5,561,338
oopopoooooooog Reclassify non-trading equities from
goooboooboono AFS to FVOCI
oooooo (33,345) 33,345
0201801010 00000 Opening balance 1 January 2018
gooooooooboo - HKFRS 9
oonnono (41,775) 5,594,683

0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model:

. trade receivables for sales of goods; and

. other financial assets at amortised cost.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of
these classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents were also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no
impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 did not
have material change after reassessment. Note
3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
amounts due from related parties and other receivables,
which are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term, and therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses.
The loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 did not have
material change after reassessment.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from 1 January 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The Group has adopted the new
rules retrospectively and has restated comparatives
for the 2017 financial year. In summary, the following
adjustments were made to the amounts recognised
in the balance sheet at the date of initial application (1
January 2018):

og oo

oooo ogooooo

000180 000150

ooooooo gooooooo

20170 120 310 oooo 20180 10 10

HKAS 18 HKFRS 15

carrying carrying

amount amount

31 December 1 January

2017 Reclassification 2018

ooooOooooooo Other payables and accruals 4,025,729 (1,369,209) 2,656,520
oooo Contract liabilities - 1,369,209 1,369,209
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2 OJuoooodooood 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 00O00OODOOO0OO 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c O000000001500 (c) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers — Impact of adoption (Continued)

oooooo

gooood
oooisd gooooaso
ooooooo ooooooo
20160 120 310 oooo 201701010
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2016 Reclassification 2017
00o00oooooooo Other payables and accruals 4,044,333 (1,574,355) 2,469,978
oooo Contract liabilities - 1,574,355 1,574,355
0020170120310 000
Year ended 31 December 2017
oooooo oooooo
Oooi180 gooooiso
goooo gogo goooo
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
amount Reclassification amount
oo Revenue 21,296,534 (474,585) 20,821,949
ooooooooo Selling and marketing
expenses 5,153,798 (474,585) 4,679,213

00002018010 10020170
1010 00b0o0booobooag
ooo

There was no impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 January 2018 and 1 January 2017.

106 pooooo ] 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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oo ogz20170 00O
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() Accounting for refunds

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognised. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date. As a result, no
accounting impact for refunds while applying HKFRS
15.

(i) Accounting for customer loyalty programme

The Group does not introduce any customer loyalty
programme which is likely to be affected by the HKFRS
15.

(i) Accounting for payment to customers

The application of HKFRS 15 may result in the
consideration payable to a customer recorded as
a reduction of the arrangement’s transaction price,
thereby reducing the amount of revenue recognised,
unless the payment is for a distinct good or service
received from the customer. As a consequence,
revenue and selling and marketing expenses for 2017
decreased by RMB474,585,000. For 2018, revenue
and selling and marketing expenses decreased by
RMB500,855,000.
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(iv)  Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has also voluntarily changed the
presentation of certain amounts in the balance sheet to
reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15.

. Contract liabilities in relation to advance receipts
from customers were previously included in other
payables and accruals (RMB1,369,209,000 as at
31 December 2017, RMB1,574,355,000 as at 1
January 2017).

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 either in the income statement or as a
change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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(@) Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (note 2.4.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.
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Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (note 2.4.3), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.10.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through
OCI are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

i) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’, in the
income statements.

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’
in the income statement.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in the income statement as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3.1(b) for further
details.
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The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following categories:

. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
. loans and receivables, and
. available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification determined on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its investments at initial
recognition. See note 21 for details about each type of
financial asset.

(1) Reclassification

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.
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2.11.5 Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (Continued)

) Reclassification (Continued)

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘restricted bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
bank balances’ in the balance sheet (also refer to Notes
2.15 and 2.16).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

0 0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(i) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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(i) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period

whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale (Continued)

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement —
is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See note 2.11.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
note 2.11.4 and 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
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The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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The Group manufactures and sells beverages and
instant noodles. Sales are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfiled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit term of 60-
90 days, which is consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.
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Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

() Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for
certain PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
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() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade receivables (Note 23), cash and
bank balances (Note 26) and borrowings (Note 31),
part of which are denominated in United States dollar
(“UsSD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been
approximately RMB108,000 lower/higher (2017:
RMB241,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 O0Ooouoodoao 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
31 00O0D0Oooon 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
@ O000000 (@) Market risk (Continued)
@ ooooooo () Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
gooo Exposure
dooobodoooobooood The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
ooo0oooOooooooooo the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,
Om was as follows:
ooo
goooo goooo oooo
Other
usb HKD currencies

denominated denominated denominated

020180 120 310 As at 31 December 2018
oo Cash 14,968 2,653 206
0ooooo Trade receivables 1,564 3,231 -
oooo Bank borrowings (13,726) - -
020170120 310 As at 31 December 2017
oo Cash 14,375 3,297 2,402
oooooo Trade receivables 218 2,434 -
oooo Bank borrowings (13,068) - -
ooooooooo Amounts recognised in the income statement
0do0poDoooobooooooo During the year, the following foreign-exchange related
oooo amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2018 2017
goooo ogoooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooogoooo Finance income — net
opoooood — Foreign exchange gains/(losses)
ooooooo on financing activities 344 (5,857)

O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to major equity securities price
risk because of its holding of listed equity investments
which are classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as FVOCI (Note 19). The Group has not hedged its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2018, if the quoted market price of
the listed equity investments had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly traded FVOCI
and total equity would be approximately RMBO.7 million
(2017: RMB1.0 million) higher/lower than the current
value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.
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(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 31) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 26 and Note 31 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB24,477,000 (2017: RMB9,708,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.
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Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, at FVOCI| and at FVPL, favourable
derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

(1) Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2018, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk, the table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by
counterparties:

2018 2017
ooooo ogoooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooad Counterparties

Ooooooogo* -Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 158,665 228,583
ooooao — Foreign owned banks 1,234,429 753,714
Oooooooooa — Other domestic commercial banks 3,782,073 1,799,639
5,175,167 2,781,936

* ooooooooooooo * Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and

goooobooooboooao
gooooobooooooooao
oboooooooooogan
gooooo
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Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.
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() Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

For derivative financial instruments, management has
established limits so that, at any time, less than 10%
of the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding are
with any individual counterparty.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to

the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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20180120 310 31 December 2018

]
he Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9)
was determined as follows for both trade receivables
and contract assets:

09000 9101800 18103650 oooao 0o
Within 91 to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

oooooo Expected loss rate 0.82% 16.86% 71.28% 100.00%
oooo Gross carrying amount
goooooo — trade receivables 504,102 35,402 2,337 1,870 543,711
oooo Loss allowance 4,145 5,968 1,666 1,870 13,649
goeod o 9101800 1810 3650 gooo oo
Within 91to 181 to Over
201801010 1 January 2018 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
oooooo Expected loss rate 0.82% 17.60% 72.84% 100.00%
oooo Gross carrying amount
goooooo — trade receivables 532,329 41,368 3,366 1,367 578,430
oooo Loss allowance 4,377 7,282 2,452 1,367 15,478

0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2018 are reconciled to the opening losses

ooooDoao allowances as follows:
2018 2017
ooooo ooood
RMB’000 RMB’000
120 310 31 December — calculated under
oooooooog HKAS 39
o390 oo 15,478 10,086
oopooogooooo Amounts restated through opening
ood retained earnings - -
02018010100 Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
goooooo 2018 - calculated under HKFRS 9
ooooooooog
ooononQ 15,478 10,086
goopooooooo (Decrease)/increase in loss allowance
gooooooogoo recognised in the income statement
Oo0oed during the year (Note 6) (1,702) 6,604
goopooooooo Receivables written off during
ooooooooo the year as uncollectible (127) (1,212)
0120 310 At 31 December 13,649 15,478

gooooooboboooboobooo
gooooooboooobooboboo
gooobooooboobooo
gooboobooooboobooobooo
ogoooboooobgoooo
eoU oo OO uoOoOon
googom

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade

receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables
was assessed based on the incurred loss model.
Individual receivables which were known to be
uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. The other receivables were assessed
collectively to determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not
yet been identified. For these receivables the estimated
impairment losses were recognised in a separate
provision for impairment. The Group considered that
there was evidence of impairment if any of the following
indicators were present:

. significant financial difficulties of the debtor

. probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and

. default or late payments.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables (Continued)

Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when
there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. The change of the impairment methodology to
other receivables has immaterial impacts on the existing
amount of loss allowances for other receivables as at
1 January 2018 and hence the Group has not made
adjustments.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment (gains)/losses on financial assets
recognised in the income statement

During the year, the following (gains)/losses were
recognised in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statement in relation to impaired financial assets:

2018 2017
ooocoo ooocoo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0oooood Movement in loss allowance for
ogooooa trade receivables (1,702) 6,604

) OOoOoOoOooooooonn

goboooobooogoooo
gobooobobooooboo
020180120310 00000
gobboogoz2o017obobo OO
60,000,0000 [TJ

gobooooboooobogoo
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goboooboboooobooo
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gooobooogoobooon
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(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation to
debt investments that are measured at FVPL. There was
no exposure to such financial assets at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB60,000,000).

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities

that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the

balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

oooao The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
0o0o0x 0o0o0r oo
Less than Between 1
000 Group 1 year and 2 years Total
ooooo ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
020180 120 310 As at 31 December 2018
oo Borrowings 1,987,726 - 1,987,726
0opoooo Interest payments on borrowings 39,528 - 39,528
oooooo Trade payables 1,554,219 - 1,554,219
goooooooooo Other payables and accruals,
gooooooonoo (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,341,946 - 2,341,946
oooooooo Other long term payables - 237,655 237,655
5,923,419 237,655 6,161,074
020170 120 310 As at 31 December 2017
00 Borrowings 834,768 500,000 1,334,768
oooooo Interest payments on borrowings 24,128 12,822 36,950
gooooo Trade payables 1,396,000 - 1,396,000
00ooooooooo Other payables and accruals,
gooooooooo (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,179,064 - 2,179,064
oooooooo Other long term payables - 251,319 251,319
4,433,960 764,141 5,198,101
0 0 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.



gobooooboooooboa
000050%0020180 02017
0120310 0000000004

0 oooogoasino
gooboooood
000260

gooo
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Total borrowings (Note 31)
Less: cash and time deposits (Note 26)

Net cash
Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio

goooooooooobobooo
0020180120310 00000
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The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,987,726 1,334,768
(5,176,478) (2,782,731)
(3,188,752) (1,447,963)
13,222,307 12,815,477
10,033,555 11,367,514
-31.78% ~12.74%

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 was
negative since the Group is in net cash position.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

B
he Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets

that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2018

oo and 2017.
020180 020170
1200 310 120 310
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ooogo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo Assets
oooooa FVOCI (Note 19)
goooooo
0000000190
0010 — Level 1 6,956 -
0030 - Level 3 211,665 -
218,621 -
oooooooo AFS (Note 19)
0002190
0010 - Level 1 - 10,428
0030 — Level 3 - 211,665
- 222,093
ooooooooa FVPL (Note 25)
0000000250
0030 — Level 3 - 60,000
154 O 1000 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

%3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

There were no changes in level 3 instruments related
to FVOCI (2017: AFS) for the year ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

[ Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the FVOCI (2017: AFS). Under this methodology,
fair value is determined by discounting the projected
cash flow of the investee company to present worth
based on profit and cash flows forecast and other
relevant information provided by the investee company.
The discount rate used for the investment as at 31
December 2018 was 14% (2017: 14%) per annum
which was determined by the risk-free rate, market
return, estimated beta of the investee company and
firm specific risk factors. The market approach adopts
various sales/income multiples to assess the fair value
of the FVOCI (2017: AFS). Under this methodology, fair
value is determined by multiplying various sales/income
of the investee company to multiples with regard to the
risks and nature of the businesses. In estimating the
multiples, reference has been made to the operating
results of companies with similar business nature,
having their operating activities in the PRC and whose
ownership interests are publicly traded.

As at 31 December 2018, if the discount rate and
the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.40%/12.60%), the
carrying amounts of the FVOCI (2017: AFS) would be
approximately RMB8,278,000 lower/RMB10,728,000
higher (2017: RMB16,805,000 lower/RMB21,598,000
higher) than the current value.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
approximated their fair values.
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reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as FVOCI (2017: AFS) (Note 19) is determined
by using valuation techniques (Note 3.3). The Group
uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and
to make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The
effect of the changes in one or more of the inputs has
been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(b)  Income taxes and deferred income tax assets
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB10,919,000 (2017: RMB13,769,000).

(c) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use rights and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.
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Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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Segment information

= O

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018
oo ooo oo ooo ooo
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
gobooo 0O0OOO0O0 DOOO0OO0O0O DOOoO00O0O 00000
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
oooo Segment results
oo Revenue 12,619,416 8,425,149 721,675 - 21,772,240
ooooooo Timing of revenue recognition
oooooo At a point in time 12,619,416 8,425,149 556,720 - 21,601,285
oooooo Over time - - 170,955 - 170,955
12,619,416 8,425,149 721,675 - 21,772,240
ooooooooo Segment profit/(loss) 1,285,022 460,927 26,075 (440,099) 1,331,925
goooooo Finance income - net - - - 123,475 123,475
goooooo Share of profit of investments
oooooo accounted for using the equity
method 32,133 - - 52,241 84,374
ooooooo Profit before income tax 1,539,774
ooooo Income tax expense (510,070)
gooo Profit for the year 1,029,704
gooooooo Other segment items included
0ooo in the income statement
ooooo Depreciation and amortisation 960,298 221,898 70,638 115,352 1,368,186
gopooooo Segment assets and liabilities
oo Assets 10,447,079 3,157,950 709,294 6,670,398 20,984,721
opoooooooo Investments accounted for
using the equity method 551,143 - - 196,694 747,837
ood Total assets 10,998,222 3,157,950 709,294 6,867,092 21,732,558
oo Liabilities 3,498,190 2,448,781 360,300 2,202,980 8,510,251
ood Total liabilities 8,510,251
ooooooo Addition to non-current assets 627,330 277,112 41,387 39,936 985,765

00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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S Uboootdond 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(@ OOOODOOO (@) Segment information (Continued)
2017
oo goo oo goo goo
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
goooo 00000 0O0OO0O00 0bOO0OOoO0b0 O0OO00Dbo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo Segment results
ooooooo Revenue (restated) 12,179,014 7,974,498 668,437 - 20,821,949
ooooooo Timing of revenue recognition
oooooo At a point in time 12,179,014 7,974,498 501,416 - 20,654,928
oooooo Over time - - 167,021 - 167,021
12,179,014 7,974,498 668,437 - 20,821,949
ooooooooo Segment profit/(loss) (restated)
goooo 1,015,245 411,815 49,210 (289,659) 1,186,611
goooooo Finance income - net - - - 61,710 61,710
oopoooooDoo Share of profit/(loss) of
0ooooooono investments accounted for
using the equity method 18,971 - - 9,532 28,503
ooooooo Profit before income tax 1,276,824
ooooo Income tax expense (398,608
oooo Profit for the year 878,216
oooooooo Other segment items included
gooo in the income statement
ooD0oo Depreciation and amortisation 966,893 265,738 70,424 98,450 1,401,505
ooooooo Segment assets and liabilities
oo Assets 10,263,188 3,665,027 630,157 4,758,464 19,316,836
ooooooooo Investments accounted for
using the equity method 575,265 - - 144,451 719,716
000 Total assets 10,838,453 3,665,027 630,157 4,902,915 20,036,552
00 Liabilities 3,378,047 1,717,052 573274  1552,702 7,221,075
oono Total liabilities 7,221,075
ooooooo Addition to non-current assets 623,483 114,872 624 11,779 750,758
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Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, FVOCI (2017:
AFS), financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss, cash and banks, and investment properties and
related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use
rights, property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows:

2018 2017
goooog goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooooooo The total of non-current assets other
goooooo than financial instruments and
gooooood deferred income tax assets
ood - PRC 12,942,400 13,636,185
ooooao — Overseas countries 30,675 63,705
oooa Financial instruments 780,533 229,210
gpoooood Deferred income tax assets 328,684 286,972
14,082,292 14,216,072
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onsolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

20180 20180 20170

1200 310 1200 310 1010

31 December 31 December 1 January

2018 2018 2017

goooo gooooo goooao

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

goooooa Contract liabilities - Beverages 1,020,291 801,423 965,047
oopoooooo Contract liabilities

- Instant noodles 605,065 434,412 478,379

oopooooo Contract liabilities — Others 73,630 133,374 130,929

opoooao Total contract liabilities 1,698,986 1,369,209 1,574,355

0180 000000b00000
ooooooooon

(i) Significant changes in contract liabilities

The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was due
to the change in the time frame for a performance
obligation to be satisified.

O 1000 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in the
prior year.

20180 20170
120 310 120310
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooo
(Restated)
ooooooonnn  Revenue recognised that was included
oooooo in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period
oo Beverages 801,423 965,047
oono Instant noodles 434,412 478,379
oo Others 133,374 130,929
1,369,209 1,574,355
) OOoooooon (i) Unsatisfied performance obligations

gooooooboobooooo
goooooooooooooo
oooooooboooobooo

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
less.

ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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expenses are analysed as follows:

Raw materials, packaging materials,
consumables and
purchased commodity used
Changes in inventories of finished goods
Manufacturing outsourcing expenses
Promotion and advertising expenses
Employee benefit expenses,
including directors’ emoluments
(Note 9)
Transportation expenses
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 14)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 15)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17)
Operating lease in respect of buildings
City construction tax, property tax and
other tax surcharges
Provision for impairment of
land use rights (Note 14)
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment (Note 15)
Provision/(reversal) of provision of
inventories to net realisable value
(Note 22)
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of
trade receivables
(Note 3.1(b))
Auditors’ remunerations
— Audit services
Others

Total

2018
goooo
RMB’000

12,652,310

(173,273)
46,629
1,629,000

3,217,445
855,931
54,014
1,285,837

19,941

8,394
128,206

266,856

19,329

27,787

9,260

(1,702)

7,020
760,316

20,813,300

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

2017
ooooo
RMB’000
ooooo
(Restated)

12,118,282
96,344
43,087

1,323,559

3,025,180
833,989
57,206
1,314,559

18,592

11,148
137,017

273,722

(2,825)

6,604

7,269
723,856

19,987,589
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Losses on disposal of property,

plant and equipment, net

Gains/(losses) on disposal of
land use rights, net

Gains from settlement of derivatives

Impairment of AFS (Note 19)
Others

Government grants

Rental income from lease of property,

plant and equipment and
investment properties

Consultation service income (Note 34(a))

Others

2018
ugoooo
RMB’000

(16,965)

1,050

6,494

(9,421)

2018
goooo
RMB’000

151,099

128,352
58,660
44,295

382,406

2017
ugoooao
RMB’000

(12,414)

(16,174)

4,663
(20,419)
12,818

(31,526)

2017
goooo
RMB’000

135,866

120,257
52,388
75,266

383,777

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to

be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the

consolidated income statements.
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9 Uuuguboouboboodd 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2018 2017

oooon ogoooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooood Wages and salaries 2,568,047 2,448,606
oooooooooo Pension and other social welfare

oooooood (defined contribution plan) 390,652 332,330

oo0ooooooon Staff quarters and housing benefit 106,629 100,181

oooa Other benefits 152,117 144,063

3,217,445 3,025,180

(@ DOOODOOOd (a) Five highest paid individuals

0gdzo01801203100000
gbooobooobooobooboo
gozo17y0o0 b O0o0oooOoO
O00036(@O0O0O000O0
gobooooooooooao
gzo17voopooooooooobd

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
included two (2017: two) directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 36(a).
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2017:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

ooooooo
2018 2017

Ooooooooooo Basic salaries, housing allowances,

oooOoooooo other allowances and benefits

goooooo in kind (RMB’000) 5,458 4,590
ooo In the band of:
1,500,0010 0O O HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000

2,000,0000 OO OO (equivalent to RMB1,314,001 to

00001,314,0010 RMB1,752,000)

00001,752,0000 O - 3
2,000,0010 O O HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

2,500,0000 00 OO (equivalent to RMB1,752,001 to

000doai,752,0010 RMB2,190,000)

000 02,190,0000 O 3 -

168 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

0
10 OO0 o0oood 10 FINANCE INCOME — NET
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo Finance income
ooooDooooo — Interest income on cash and
oooo banks 169,273 113,484
goooogoo — Net foreign exchange gains 344 -
169,617 113,484
gooo Finance cost
oooooooOo — Interest expenses on borrowings (57,839) (61,038)
ooooooad — Net foreign exchange losses - (5,857)
oooogooooao — Less: amounts capitalized on
ooooo qualifying assets 11,697 15,121
(46,142) (51,774)
goooooo Finance income — net 123,475 61,710
ooooo 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo Current income tax
odooooooo — Current income tax on profit
ooooo for the year 480,363 319,067
000D0oooo2o0 Deferred income tax (Note 20) (32,793) 45,128
gooooogooao Withholding tax on dividends from
ooo PRC subsidiaries 62,500 34,413
510,070 398,608

O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to CIT
at rate of 25% (2017: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs’] 0 0 [2011]580 “0J
Jooo0ooo0oooouooooooooooooro,
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2017: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.



ooooboOooDooboood The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
ooDoDooDoDoooooooo differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
25941 20170025% 00 000 0O using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2017:
ooooood 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

2018 2017

goooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooooono Profit before income tax 1,539,774 1,276,824

oooooooooon
RN
oooooooooo
gooooooon
ogooooon
gooooooon
gooooooo
goooo
goooon
goooon

gooooooon

goooon
gooooo

ooooo

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
in the PRC 384,944 319,206
Tax effects of:
Preferential tax rates on the profits of
certain subsidiaries 887 (416)
Tax losses and temporary differences
for which no deferred income tax

asset was recognized 62,137 46,563
Income not subject to tax (21,094) (7,126)
Expenses not deductible for

tax purpose 20,696 12,142
Additional deduction of research and

development expenses - (6,174)
Withholding tax on dividends from

PRC subsidiaries 62,500 34,413

Income tax expense 510,070 398,608
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(o) ODOOOoOooo (b) Other income tax (Continued)

ooboobooboobooooo

B
he Consolidated Financial Statements

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax charge relating to components of other

ooooo comprehensive income is as follows:
2018 2017
ooo 0ooo ooo 0oo oooo ooo
Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax
00000 DO0OO0OO0 DOO0O0OO0 00000 00000 ©0O000
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pooooaoo Other comprehensive income:
0000o0D0o0Dn - Net fair value losses
ooooooa from FVOCI
ooo (3,473) - (3,473) = = =
ooooooo - Impairment of AFS - - - 20,419 - 20,419
oooooooo - Net fair value losses
00O from AFS = = = (3,435) = (3,435)
00000000200  Deferred income tax (Note 20) - -
12 0000 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
0o Basic
ooooDoooooooooooao Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
gooooooooooooooao attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
oooooo average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2018 2017
oopoooooooooo Profit attributable to equity holders of
ooooooo the Company (RMB’000) 1,029,704 878,216
ooooooooooo Weighted average number of
ooogno ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
oooooo Basic earnings per share
gooooood (RMB per share) 23.84 cents [ 20.33 cents O
00o0ooooooooooooog Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
0DOo0bOooOOooooooooo share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
172 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooooooao Proposed final dividend of
00000000 23.840 RMB23.84 cents
02017000 0 014.2300 (2017: RMB14.23 cents)
per ordinary share 1,029,704 614,751

020180 0201700000000
20170 020160 12031000000
O0O000D0O0e19,402,000000
0 0119,834,00000

gz2019050170 0000000 QoO
OO00O000D0O02o01801203100
obobooobobooozss4boponon
0O00000D01,029,704,0000 IO O
gboboboooboooobooboooa

uooooobobbooboooooooo
ooboooboobooooboooboon
ooogd

The dividends paid by the Company in 2018 and 2017 for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 amounted to
RMB619,402,000 and RMB119,834,000, respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018
of RMB23.84 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB1,029,704,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 17 May 2019. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

2018 2017

goooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

01010 At 1 January 2,103,701 2,221,526
00 Additions 275 -
oad Disposals (62,818) (60,619)
000dogoden Impairment provision (Note 6) (19,329) -
000 dden Amortisation (Note 6) (54,014) (57,206)
0120 310 At 31 December 1,967,815 2,103,701
00 Cost 2,385,244 2,472,221
oogdagd Accumulated amortisation (417,429) (368,520)
oooo Net book amount 1,967,815 2,103,701

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
are with the lease periods as follows:

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
gopooooo In the PRC, held on:

500000000 Original lease period of over 50 years 9,861 10,085

og0gso0oooOo Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 1,957,954 2,093,616
goooooao Closing net book amount 1,967,815 2,103,701

oooooobooOoooooooooon
gboboboooonboooooaonn
gobbooooooooog

Amortisation charges of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’, ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2018 2017

ooooo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooa Cost of sales 34,135 28,909
gooooooon Selling and marketing expenses 4,137 4,417
gooo Administrative expenses 15,742 23,880
54,014 57,206

gzoisb 12031000 oooooonon

gooob2017000 0O 019,012,000

[EREN
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As at 31 December 2018, there was no land use rights

certificate had not been obtained (2017: RMB19,012,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O
15 0000 oogao 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
ooo0 o0ooooo
oo 0ooo ooooo oooo 0ooo oo
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
poooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo poooo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0201701010 At 1 January 2017
oo Cost 6,279,923 7,670,129 3,257,551 9,152 849,795 18,066,550
oooo Accumulated depreciation (1,425,844) (3,367,124) (2,166,934) (9,152) - (6,969,054)
oooooo Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
oooo Net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,795 11,097,233
0020170120310000 Year ended 31 December 2017
oooooo Opening net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,795 11,097,233
oo Additions 9,049 40,643 351,627 - 343,108 744,427
ooooo Transfer upon completion 596,500 34,219 40,934 - (671,653) -
oo Disposals (2,087) (1,532) (19,091) S S (22,710)
oooooeo Depreciation (Note 6) (284,365) (600,694) (429,500) - - (1,314,559)
oooooo Closing net book amount 5,173,176 3,775,378 1,034,587 - 521,250 10,504,391
020170120 310 At 31 December 2017
oo Cost 6,883,336 7,719,418 3,370,282 9,152 521,250 18,503,438
oooo Accumulated depreciation (1,710,161) (3,943,777) (2,335,694 (9,152) - (7,998,784
gooooo Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
oooo Net book amount 5,173,175 3775378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
0020180120310 000 Year ended 31 December 2018
gooooo Opening net book amount 5,173,175 3,775,378 1,034,588 - 521,250 10,504,391
oo Additions - 40,856 364,002 - 573,059 977,917
ooooo Transfer upon completion 396,692 107,483 43199 - (547,374) -
oo Disposals (218,773) (17,099) (26,709) - - (262,581)
oooooeo Depreciation (Note 6) (314,555) (569,323) (401,959) - - (1,285,837)
0oooooosed Impairment provision (Note 6) (20,000) (7,787) - - - (27,787)
oooooo Closing net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
020180 120 310 At 31 December 2018
oo Cost 7,033,627 7,767,063 3,583,034 9,152 546,935 18,939,811
oooo Accumulated depreciation (2,017,088) (4,437,292) (2,569,913) (9,152) - (9,033,445)
oooooo Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
oooo Net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103

00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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0oODoDOOoDOOoDOOobDOOobOOooaono Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2018 2017
goood goood
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooa Cost of goods sold 847,462 912,037
ooooooooon Selling and marketing expenses 272,238 232,931
oooo Administrative expenses 166,137 169,591
1,285,837 1,314,559
00DO0DOO0DODO0DoOOoDbOoog The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.
020180 020170120310 0000 There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
ooooooooooo 31 December 2018 and 2017.
oooooooboOooooono Rental income amounting to approximately RMB41.2 million
041,200,00000 2017000 0 O (2017: RMB35.7 million) derived from lease of buildings
35,700,000 00 00D D0DO0DO0O0OOO is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
goooomoonsd statement (Note 8).
gddooooooooooooao During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
00D00011,697,00000 2017000 amounting to RMB11,697,000 (2017: RMB15,121,000) on
0 di5,121,0000 0000000 0O 0O qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
dooooooooooooooao weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.92%
3.929412017003.94% 00 0 O OO (2017: 3.94%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

0
16 OO 0O 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
010 10d At 1 January 353,123 365,384
oo Addition 2,747 6,331
gooooed Depreciation (Note 6) (19,941) (18,592)
0120 310 At 31 December 335,929 353,123
0120310000 Cost as at 31 December 497,800 495,053
oooo Accumulated depreciation (161,871) (141,930)
0120 310 At 31 December 335,929 353,123

goboooobooboboobon
goboobobooooo4o00500D0O
goo

gooobooooboboooonn
gooboboobom

The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Sichuan and Guangdong Province and erected on land with
lease periods of 40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.

2018 2017

ooooo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooo Rental income 87,130 84,547
goooooobobooooo Direct operating expenses from property

oooooo that generated rental income (12,271) (13,548)

74,859 70,999

0 0 0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 177
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

2018 2017

oooon oooon

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooad Carrying amount 335,929 353,123
oodo Fair value 416,556 450,777

020180 020170120310 0000
gooooboobooooooooon
gos3sooooobooooboooooo
obooboooo

gooboooboobooooooosooo
gbobobooboboobobooo

The fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were
determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

oooooood
Unobservable inputs

020180 120 310

oo ooo oo ooo
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2018 Rental value  Discount rate
goooooo goobobg
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

QA 47,603 007,762 10%
Plant A ) , per annum ()
ooB

98,310 0 018,112 per annum 10%
Plant B
goc

63,511 0 09,732 per annum 10%
Plant C
oob

78,838 0 012,309 per annum 10%
Plant D
goo

! . 94,758 0 02,851 per annum 10%

Office building
oo

33,536 0 0 - per annum 10%
Shops
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

0201701203100

gooooooo
Unobservable inputs

oo ooo oo ooo
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2017 Rental value Discount rate
ooooooao ooooooog
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
OOA
98,843 00 0 14,331 per annum 10%
Plant A
ooB
109,014 0 018,112 per annum 10%
Plant B
goc
99,914 0 013,732 per annum 10%
Plant C
oob
13,918 0 012,378 per annum 10%
Plant D
ooo
i o 95,835 0 06,126 per annum 10%
Office building
oo
33,730 0 O — per annum 10%
Shops
0 1000 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 179
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gg
gooo

gooag

go0bz20170120310000O
ogooooo

od

goooged

goooon

020170120 310
od
ogooo

gooo

ggz20180120310000
goooon

ug

0 oo goen

goooon

020180 1201 310
og
gooo

gooo
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At 1 January 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation (Note 6)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation (Note 6)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

ooogd
Computer
software

ooooo
RMB’000

93,222
(63,577)

29,645

29,645
462
(11,148)

18,959

93,684
(74,725)

18,959

18,959
4,826
(8,394)

15,391

98,510
(83,119)

15,391
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17 O0O0O00O 00O 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
JooDoooDooooooooao The amortisation of computer software has been charged
gooooooboOoooooooo to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
Ooo0ooooov,056,000000 expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB7,056,000
0 01,338,000002017000 00O and RMB1,338,000 (2017: RMB8,568,000 and
8,568,0000 O O O O 2,580,0000 [MTJ RMB2,580,000), respectively.
18 DO ooood 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

goopooooooooooo The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2018 2017

ogpoooo gpooono

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooDO0OO000n@a) Interests in associate (a) 303,592 291,781

00000000 (b) Interests in joint ventures (b) 444,245 427,935

0120310 At 31 December 747,837 719,716
goooDoooooooo The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:

2018 2017

goooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

Oo0oooo0oo(a Share of profits of associate (a) 18,209 16,012

00o0o0oooo0oao(b) Share of net of profits of joint ventures (b) 66,165 12,491

00120310000 For the year ended 31 December 84,374 28,503

0 ooo 000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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B
he Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@) Interests in associate

The movements in interests in associate are as follows:

2018 2017

ooooo ooooog

RMB’000 RMB’000

01010 At 1 January 291,781 278,968
oooag Share of profits 18,209 16,012
oogagd Dividends received (6,398) (3,199)
0120 310 At 31 December 303,592 291,781

020180 120310000000
obooooboobooooo
oo

The particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31
December 2018, which is accounted for using equity
method, are set out as follows:

ooooooo
oooo goooo goooooao goooooao gooo
Paid-up
Country/place and capital/ Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
ooooo
Listed:
goooooooo gooo ooo 17.87% 17.87% goooooooo
oooooo 20010 60 260 392,600,0000 ooooooooo
odoooooooo gooooooo
(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB392,600,000 The production and sales

Co., Ltd.*) (“Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001
(Note)

* ooooooooooooao
ooooOoooooo

ooo

oboooobooOooooooooao

ooboboooobooobooooooboo
ooooo

of concentrated apple
juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.

* The English name represents the best effort by
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Note:
The Group has significant influence over Andre Juice as one

of the board’s non-executive directors was appointed by the
Group.

0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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O

18 oo oooo g 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@ OO0OODOODOODOODOO (@) Interests in associate (Continued)
oo0oooDoDooooooooo A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
00Do0bOOoDOOooOoooooo shares of the associated company’s assets, liabilities

and results in aggregate is as follows:

2018 2017
oooogo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooooo Summary of balance sheet

ooooo Non-current assets 135,263 149,755
gooa Current assets 193,170 205,011
ooo Total assets 328,433 354,766
ooooao Non-current liabilities 157 157
opood Current liabilities 24,684 62,828
oono Total liabilities 24,841 62,985
ooagd Net assets 303,592 291,781

ooooooo Summary of comprehensive income
oag Revenue 189,751 159,989
00O00O0o0o0DDDO0O  Post-tax profits from operations 18,209 16,012
oopoood Other comprehensive income - -
gooooa Total comprehensive income 18,209 16,012

O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 o ouuoauoobn 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) DOODOOOOO (b) Interests in joint ventures
Oo0ooDooooooooog The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2018 2017

googoo googo

RMB’000 RMB’000

01010 At 1 January 427,935 451,506

oooo Capital reduction - (35,766)

ooogooo Share of net profits 66,165 12,491

oood Dividend received (49,855) (296)

0120 310 At 31 December 444,245 427,935
002017012031000000 The capital reduction in the year ended 31 December
oooooodoooooooo 2017 represented return of capital of investment
O0oDoooDooooooog in China F&B Venture Investments pursuant to a
Ooo0DoDo0oOoooDoooooDooo shareholders’ resolution passed by all shareholders
oooooooooooooo approving the capital reduction according to the

respective equity interests of the shareholders.

184 O 1000 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as

at 31 December 2018, all of which are unlisted and

accounted for using equity method, are set out as

follows:
0oo0o0o0o
gooo goooo gooo goooooo gooo
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
goooooooog gooo ooo 50% 50% goooooooo
gooooooo 20080 70 180 1,000,0000
mooooooboood
United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMBZ1,000,000 Investment management
Management Co., Ltd. * 18 July 2008 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)
gooopoooooooo boboo 19,060,000C] O 42% 42% goooooooooodg
oooooooo 20090 70 240 oooooooao
Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, USD19,060,000 Production of various types
Industries Co., Ltd. * 24 July 2009 of beverages including
(“Guilin Ziquan”) fruit, vegetable, tea and
coffee etc.
Greater China F&B oooo 10,7000 O 50% 50% 0oooo
Capital Partners Ltd. 20080 40 160
(“Greater China F&B") Cayman Islands, UsD10,700 Investment management
16 April 2008
goooooobobooooo oboboo ooo 50% 50% gooooooo
oooooooo 2011070290 232,000,0000
Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various types
Enterprises Co., Ltd.* 29 July 2011 of plastic products
(“Wuhan Zijiang”)
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. gooo 500,0000 O 50% 50% gooo
(*smscc”) 20120110 280
Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management

28 November 2012

] 0 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

ooooooo
oooo ooooo oooo ooooooo oooo
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2018 2017
SMS Investment oooo 500,0000 O 50% 50% 0ooo
Management Co., 201301020
Ltd. (“SMS Investment Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
Management”) 2 January 2013
oooooooooo oooo ooo 39.74% 39.74% 0ooo
oooooO0ooo 20090 40 130 426,500,0000
China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB426,500,000 Investment management
Investments* 13 April 2009
(“China F&B”)
gooooooo oooo 19,000,0000 O 35% 35% ooooooo
oooo 20130 70 230
Ziquan Beverage industries Yichang, PRC, USD19,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
CO., LTD.* 23 July 2013 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. oooo 14,720,0000 O 23.44% 23.44% oooo
(“SMSfund”) 20120 120180
Cayman Islands, USD14,720,000 Investment management
18 December 2012
* oooDoooooOooooa * The English name represents the best effort by

oooooooooo

oooooo ooo
Annual Report 2018 0 O
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O

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of China F&B’s

ooooogo assets, liabilities and results is as follows:
2018 2017
goooo gpooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooooo Summary of balance sheet
oooaoao Non-current assets 403,984 355,623
gooa Current assets 51,123 29,933
ooo Total assets 455,107 385,556
oooog Non-current liabilities = -
ooog Current liabilities 263 84
ooo Total liabilities 263 84
ooad Net assets 454,844 385,472
oooooooono Group’s % share 39.74% 39.74%
oooood Group’s share in RMB
ooooo 180,755 153,187
ooooooo Summary of comprehensive income
oo Revenue 24,000 74,277
OO0D0OO0O00O00DO0O Post-tax profits from operations 159,677 70,110
oopoood Other comprehensive income - -
goooooa Total comprehensive income 159,677 70,110
goOoooo Group’s share 63,456 27,862

0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of Wuhan

ooooood Zijiang’s assets, liabilities and results is as follows:
2018 2017
ogoooo googo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0ooooo Summary of balance sheet
ooooo Non-current assets 81,563 102,087
oooo Current assets 252,781 295,112
ooo Total assets 334,344 397,199
ooood Non-current liabilities = -
googd Current liabilities 26,676 17,666
ooo Total liabilities 26,676 17,666
ooad Net assets 307,668 379,533
ooooooooo Group’s % share 50% 50%
oopoooo Group’s share in RMB
ooooo 153,834 189,767
ooooooo Summary of comprehensive income
oad Revenue 320,837 33,870
O0O00O000D0OO Post-tax profits from operations 27,847 31,225
oooooo Other comprehensive income - -
oooooag Total comprehensive income 27,847 31,225
oooaao Group’s share 13,924 15,628

oooooo ooo
Annual Report 2018 0 O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gogod
googd

gooooDoOoooboboo0ooooan
gz2017y00000O0CcOoooO0oooon
gooooooobooon

O

FVOCI AND AFS

The FVOCI (2017: AFS) of the Group are stated at fair value
and include the following:

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000

oooooood Listed securities, Hong Kong
oooa Haisheng Juice 6,956 10,428

oo0ooooono Unlisted securities, PRC

ooooo Wondersun Dairy 211,665 211,665
218,621 222,093
oooooooo Market value of listed securities 6,956 10,428

gooobooooooonooo2o17
ggoooooooooboooo
od

The movements in FVOCI (2017: AFS) during the year are as
follows:

2018 2017

gooono gooono

RMB’000 RMB’000

0i01d At 1 January 222,093 225,528
goooooooo Net fair value changes taken to other

0000000000280 comprehensive income (Note 28) (3,472) (3,435)

0120 310 At 31 December 218,621 222,093

oooooooooooooooao
oooooog

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based

on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

0 0 000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2017: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.93% (2017: 2.99%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2018.
The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price of
Haisheng Juice.

The Group holds 9% (2017: 9%) equity interests in O O O
000000000000 (Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.) (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

The investment in Haisheng Juice is denominated in HKD,
and the investment in Wondersun Dairy is denominated in
RMB.
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20 OO0O0O DO 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
JoooooooooDpooooao The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
oooo income tax liabilities is as follows:
2018 2017
ooooo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooooo Deferred income tax assets
00012000000 - Deferred income tax assets to be
oo0ooooo recovered within 12 months 215,513 193,021
00012000000 — Deferred income tax assets to be
ooooooo recovered after more than
12 months 113,171 93,951
328,684 286,972
goooooo Deferred income tax liabilities
go0d12000000 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
O00O0oOooo settled within 12 months 6,484 6,265
0000012000000 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
oo0ooooo settled after more than 12 months 176,610 167,910
183,094 174,175
Oooooooooo Deferred income tax assets, net 145,590 112,797

0 0 000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 00000000 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
ooooooopDooooo The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:
2018 2017
gooono oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
01010 At 1 January 112,797 157,925
0000000000000 Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
000110 income statement (Note 11) 32,793 (45,128)
0120 310 At 31 December 145,590 112,797
do0odoooooooooooooo The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
o0o00o0oO00oDooOooooooodg during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
ooooooad Deferred income tax assets
oooooo
oooooo
goooa
goooo goooooo
oo pooooo 020170000 0o
pgooo gooo pooo o0OO0oooooa gooao oo
Impairment
provision of Downward
accounts  Depreciation adjustment
receivables of property, in fair value
and plant and Accrued of FVOCI Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses (2017: AFS) benefit Total
gooono goooo goooa goooa goooa goooo
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
0201701010 At 1 January 2017 5,205 5,125 119,205 6,672 213,520 349,727
0oooooooomoooD (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statements (348) 2,589 10,835 - (75,831) (62,755)
020170 120310 At 31 December 2017 4,857 7,714 130,040 6,672 137,689 286,972
Doooooooomooo (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statements (464) 3,578 67,093 - (28,495) 41,712
0201800 120 310 At 31 December 2018 4,393 11,292 197,133 6,672 109,194 328,684
192 O 1000 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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0201701010 At 1 January 2017
gooooo (Credited)/charged to the
ooomoo consolidated income statements

020170 120 310
gooooo
ooboooon

At 31 December 2017
(Credited)/charged to the

020180 1200 310 At 31 December 2018

ooogooobbbooooooooo
ooooooobobobooboooooooo
ooogooooboboooooo2ols
120310 goooooooooboo
OO0O000000O0Ds814,755,0000
02017000 O 0O501,795,0000 OO O
00000000 0Dgdaroe,ss9,000
002017000 0O 0O 123,050,0000 I
gzo190gobooooboooooo
OO00O000DOOss247,000000 0
0 121,045,0000 00 O O 162,815,000
oo0o 0 01193,422, 00000000
249,246,0000 0

0201801203100 00o0040gon
ooooooooboooooboobo
O000O000D0O0ODOd?285,206,000
oboboooobooooboooboboon
ooooozo0180120310000 oo
oooooooogosroog

consolidated income statements

gooo gooo
goo gooo od ooo od
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Business  depreciation  of borrowing
tax ~ combination of equipment costs Total
gooooo goooo goooo goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
17,251 129,859 20,644 24,048 191,802
2,413 (3,533) (16,507 = (17,627)
19,664 126,326 4,137 24,048 174,175
= (5,419) 18,718 (4,380) 8,919
19,664 120,907 22,855 19,668 183,094

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB179,859,000 (2017: RMB123,050,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB814,755,000 (2017: RMB501,795,000) as at 31
December 2018 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB88,247,000, RMB121,045,000, RMB162,815,000,
RMB193,422,000 and RMB249,246,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB285,206,000 have not been recognized for the
withholding tax that would otherwise be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Management
currently has no intention to remit those earnings in the
foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings totalled RMB5.7
billion as at 31 December 2018.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

oooooo
oooo ooooon
oDoOo oooo ooo
oooo opoo oooo oooo oo
Receivables FVOCI AFS FVPL Total
ooooooo Assets as per
goooa consolidated balance
sheet
020180 120 310 As at 31 December 2018
gooooo FVOCI (Note 19)

oopooooo

0000000190 - 218,621 - - 218,621
JO00D0DO0DO230  Trade receivables (Note 23) 530,062 - - - 530,062
goooDoooo Deposits and other

ooDOCDOo receivables (excluding

prepayments) 708,366 - - - 708,366
gooooo Long-term time deposits
000260 (Note 26) 550,000 - - - 550,000
goooooo Cash and bank balances
000260 (Note 26) 4,626,478 - - - 4,626,478
oo Total 6,414,906 218,621 - - 6,633,527
020170 120310 As at 31 December 2017
oooooooo AFS (Note 19)
000190 - - 222,093 - 222,093
goooooooo FVPL (Note 25)

0000000250 - - - 60,000 60,000
JO000DO0DO230 Trade receivables (Note 23) 562,952 - - - 562,952
gooobDoooo Deposits and other

0oDOoDOoo receivables (excluding
prepayments) 994,664 - - - 994,664
goooooo Cash and bank balances
000260 (Note 26) 2,782,731 - - - 2,782,731
oo Total 4,340,347 - 222,093 60,000 4,622,440
194 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2018 0 O



21 OO00oooooood

uoo

OO0Oo0doOoonoad
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

goooooao
goooooa
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

o0oooooooooo
020180 120 310
o0O00000C0D0290
ooooooooooo
cooooooooo
00000310
00o000000000300

oo

020170 120310
O000000C00290
ooooooooooo
gooooooooo
00000310
oooooOooOoooosen

oo

Liabilities as per consolidated balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2018
Trade payables (Note 29)
Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)
Borrowings (Note 31)
Other long-term payables (Note 30)

Total

As at 31 December 2017

Trade payables (Note 29)

Other payables and accruals
(excluding non-financial liabilities)

Borrowings (Note 31)

Other long-term payables (Note 30)

Total

1,554,219

2,341,946
1,987,726
237,655

6,121,546

1,396,000

2,179,064
1,334,768
251,319

5,161,151

O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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ooagd Raw materials
ooad Work in progress
oad Finished goods
ooagd Consumables

ooobOoooooboOooooonD
oodoooooboboDboDbi4,52200
gb2017000 0 0O 14,2660 O O M

go0bz20180120310 000000
goobobooooooboooonn
gbooboobooobo,2e60,0000
gz2017000000DO2,825,0000 0
gooeoooooooooDao
gooooooo

2018 2017
ogoooo ogoooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
379,446 313,060
119,976 97,420
722,221 559,038
237,376 189,855
1,459,019 1,159,373

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
approximately RMB14,522 million (2017: RMB14,266 million).

The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
RMB9,260,000 (2017: reversed RMB2,825,000) (Note 6) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 in respect of the write-
down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income
statement.

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooood Trade receivables
oooooao — from third parties 537,528 575,244
O0D0D0DDO0OD0ODO34b)O — from related parties (Note 34(b)) 6,183 3,186
543,711 578,430
gooooo Less: provision for impairment (13,649) (15,478)
Ooooooooo Trade receivables, net 530,062 562,952

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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23 D0O0o0oooon

ooooOoooooboeonOoon OO
0 gozo0l7o0Oeon 0900 OO O
gobooooooogo

O

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
usually 60 to 90 days (2017: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2018 2017
ooood ooood
RMB’000 RMB’000

Ooo0ooooooo Trade receivables, gross
good OO — Within 90 days 504,102 532,329
0910 1800 - 91 to 180 days 35,402 41,368
00 1810 3650 — 181 to 365 days 2,337 3,366
gooon0 — Over one year 1,870 1,367
543,711 578,430

gooobobooooboboooonn

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

ooooo denominated in the following currencies:
2018 2017
ooooo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000

Oooooooooo Trade receivables, gross

ooono - RMB 538,916 575,778
ooao - UsD 1,564 218
ooo — HKD 3,231 2,434
543,711 578,430

ooooooooOooooOooooao
ooooog

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

0 0 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 197
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ooooodooooooooooonon The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
00o0ooooooooooooog date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned
0oOobDO0oDOOoDOOobOobOooboaono above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
00DO000oOooDooDOooOoooednn The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
ooo0ooooooogooooooo measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
ooooDoooooooooooao expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
00o00oooooo3.ib)oooa assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation
oooDbonog of the allowance.
0o0oDoD0oo0oO0ooDoOOoOoOoooaon Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
oodoooooooooooooon the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
0 03.10 interest rate risk can be found in note 3.1.
2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
googoooo Other receivables
gooooooo — National Debt Reserve Repurchase
products 250,000 775,000
gooooooo — Amounts due from related parties
0 0034(b)0 (Note 34(b)) 52,072 73,508
oooooooooag — Other deposits and receivables 406,294 105,994
708,366 954,502
goooooo Less : non-current portion (11,912) (7,117)
gooo Current portion 696,454 947,385
oooo Prepayments
gooooo — Prepaid value added tax 224,355 220,509
dooooooogd — Advance payments to suppliers 82,010 87,530
306,365 308,039
1,002,819 1,255,424
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oooooobobbooooooooo
oobooooobooooboobobooo
ooboooooobboooobobao
goooooooooooboobrm

In December 2018, the Group purchased National Debt
Reverse Repurchase (“NDRR”) products from Shanghai Stock
Exchange with principal amounts totalled RMB250 million
(2017: RMB775 million), including RMB250 million with a term
of 7 days and interest rate from 7.2% to 9%. The Group can
get the principal and fixed interest upon the maturity of the
NDRR products, which has been received by the Group in
January 2019. The NDRR was classified as cash and cash
equivalent as at 31 December 2018 for the purpose of cash
flow statement (Note 26).

Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represented the investment in money market fund at banks.
Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in “other (losses) — net” in the
income statement (Note 7).
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2018 2017

goooo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooog Long-term time deposits 550,000 -
ooooooo Cash and bank balances 4,626,478 2,782,731
Ooooooooao Total of cash at bank and on hand 5,176,478 2,782,731

obooooboobobooboboooon
gbobobobobobo

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as
follows:

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
gopooooo Cash at bank and on hand 5,176,478 2,782,731
goooooood Add: National Debt Reverse Repurchase
000240 products (Note 24) 250,000 775,000
d000O00OO0OO0O0O0O0O00 Less: Long-term and short-term
ooooooobooo time deposits with original
maturity over three months (3,862,000) (1,200,881)
ooooooo Restricted bank deposits (533) (500)
oooooooo Cash and cash equivalents 1,563,945 2,356,350

gz0180 12031000000 0n0O
goooooooooooosaro
02017004.380 [

gzo1st1z20310000ooo0OO
gbooobOghDbaosss,ooonn2o017
goooosoo,0000muonononOnO
gbooboboboboboo
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As at 31 December 2018, the effective weighted average
rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.17%
(2017: 4.38%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, the restricted bank deposits
of RMB533,000 (2017: RMB500,000) mainly represented
deposits at bank pledged as security for bills of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O

26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, total of cash at bank and on hand
were denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017

OoOooono OoOoono

RMB’000 RMB’000

gooog - RMB 5,158,651 2,763,538
oood - UsD 14,968 14,375
ooo - HKD 2,653 3,297
ooag — Others 206 1,521
5,176,478 2,782,731

gooooboo0ooooboboooooan
gboooobooobooooooan
gooooOoOoooboboo0ooooan
gooobooogoboobg

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated

by the PRC authorities.

Annual Report 2018 0 O

27 DO0oodood 27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT
ao
Authorised

goooo oo oooo

Number of Share capital

ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to

goo goooa

HKD’000 RMB’000

02018010100 At 1 January 2018 till
20180120 310 31 December 2018 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
gooooo
Issued and fully paid
gooo 0o gooo goooo 0o
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium

shares capital  equivalent to account Total

gooo goooo goooo goooo
HKD’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

02018010100 At 1 January 2018 il
20180120310 31 December 2018 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
0 ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 201



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
]
28 0O0OOOOOO0O 28 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS
oooo ooooo oooo oooo og
Contribution Fair value Statutory Retained
surplus reserves reserves earnings Total
ooooo ooooo ooooo goooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
0201701010000 Balance at 1 January 2017 1,144,299 (25,414) 1,117,880 4,933,683 7,170,448
000000000190 Impairment of AFS (Note 19) - 20,419 - - 20,419
oooo Profit for the year - - - 878,216 878,216
gpoooooooboooo Fair value losses on AFS (Note 19)

000190 = (3435 = = (3435)
ooooooo Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,727 (130,727) -
00020160000 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - - (119,834) (119,834)
020170120310000 Balance at 31 December 2017 1,144,299 (8,430) 1,248,607 5,561,338 7,945,814
020170120310000 Balance at 31 December 2017

ooooooa as originally presented 1,144,299 (8,430) 1,248,607 5,561,338 7,945,814
ooooooo Change in accounting policy - (33,345) - 33,345 -
0201801010000000 Restated total equity as at

1 January 2018 1,144,299 (41,775) 1,248,607 5,594,683 7,945,814

oooo Profit for the year - - - 1,029,704 1,029,704
goDoopoobooooooo Fair value losses on FVOCI (Note 19)

ooooooooie0 - (3472) - - (3,472)

ooooooo Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 159,192 (159,192) -

00020170000 Dividends relating to 2017, paid - - - (619,402) (619,402)

020180120310000 Balance at 31 December 2018 1,144,299 (45,247 1,407,799 5,845,793 8,352,644

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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goooboooobgoooo
gobooooooooooooo
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goooboooobgoooo
gbooboboog

goooboooobgoooo
oooobooooooooooo

gboboobd

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of the
changes in fair value of FVOCI and AFS.

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.
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29 Jooooag

onsolidated Financial Statements

29 TRADE PAYABLES

2018 2017
goooo googao
RMB’000 RMB’000

oooooo Trade payables
oooo — to third parties 1,193,954 1,127,978
00000 0034b)0O - to related parties (Note 34(b)) 360,265 268,022
1,554,219 1,396,000

oooooOooooooooooaso
goeoOnoOOoOoOOooOOOooOan

The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as

oo follows:
2018 2017
ooocoo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000

ooooood Trade payables

g3o0000d — Within 30 days 1,242,747 1,032,357
0310 900 — 31-90 days 238,338 293,730
0910 1800 —91-180 days 20,138 35,636
01810 3650 — 181 to 365 days 21,640 22,133
oOoooo — Over 1 year 31,356 12,144
1,554,219 1,396,000

gobooobooboobobooooon
gooobooooobboooooboo
g

All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
amounts approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet
dates.

204 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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0
30 D0oooooodaon 30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017
goooo goooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

oogooo

(Restated)

gooooooo Accruals for promotion and

ogoog advertising expenses 1,336,645 1,206,635
ooooooon Salary and welfare payables 305,770 477,455
ooooooa Deposits from customers 506,604 397,598
gooooogono Payables for purchase of equipment 294,613 236,124
goooooooood Other payables and accruals 547,176 590,027
3,090,808 2,907,839

goooood Less: non-current portion (237,655) (251,319)
oooo Current portion 2,753,153 2,656,520

oooooooooooooooao
ooooooooooooOooooo

gooobooogooo

fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

[ Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2018 0 O

Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their
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2018 2017

ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
ood Non-current
Oo0oooooo Notes payable, unsecured 500,000 500,000
oooooooooo Less: current portion of notes payable (500,000) -
- 500,000
od Current
goooooboogon Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 1,487,726 834,768
gooooooood Add: current portion of notes payable 500,000 -
1,987,726 834,768
oooa Total borrowings 1,987,726 1,334,768
0od0ooooooooooosgn The Group’s notes payables comprised 3.9% notes with
g2017000 005000039000 principal value of RMB500 million (2017: RMB500 million) and
0O00DbDODODO0O0 0O 0201908028 five years term expiring 28 August 2019.
oooo
0ooooOooOooDoDbon The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:
2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo Less than 1 year 1,987,726 834,768
oOooao Between 1 and 2 years - 500,000
oooa Total borrowings 1,987,726 1,334,768
dooooooooooooooao The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
oogd values as at the balance sheet dates.
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31 DObaag

goboooobooooboooon

31

O

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017

ooooo ooooo

RMB’000 RMB’000

ood RMB 1,974,000 1,321,700
oo usSD 13,726 13,068
1,987,726 1,334,768

goooboooobboooooan
goo

The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
balance sheet dates were set out as follows:

2018 2017
goooo ogoooo
RMB’000 RMB’000

oooooood Bank borrowings, unsecured
googo - RMB 3.92% 3.99%
ggo - UsSD 2.46% 1.47%

oooo Notes payable

googo - RMB 3.90% 3.65%

gooooooooboboooon
oo

The Group have the following undrawn bank borrowing
facilities:

2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooooo At floating rate:
gooooo — Expiring within one year 3,662,795 5,201,627
ooooooo — Expiring beyond one year 466,698 522,738
4,129,493 5,724,365
O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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ooooooo Profit before income tax
ddooooooooo Adjustments for:
gooooooooo — Share of profit of
0000000180 investments accounted for

using equity method (Note 18)

— Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 14)

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

— Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 16)

— Amortisation of intangible assets

gooDoOoO0O0O0o000140

ooooooao
oooooooaiso

o0oo00o0oOooiten

goooobocooiro

(Note 17)
goooooooooon — Losses on disposal of property,
goooovd plant and equipment (Note 7)
gooooOoO0oOoooooo — (Gains)/losses on disposal of
goooovd land use rights (Note 7)
oooboooooo — Provision for impairment of
ooovg AFS (Note 7)
gooooooooooo — Provision/(reversal) of inventories to
oooooOomog22d net realisable value (Note 22)
gooooooooooo — (Reversal)/provision for impairment of
goooDooOooD trade receivables (Note 23)
000230
gooooooooog — Provision for impairment of
land use rights
gooooooooo — Provision for impairment of
goodo property, plant and equipment
oo00o0oooooaion — Interest expenses (Note 10)
oooooooooo — Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
0 00100 (Note 10)
gooooooooooo — Fair value gains on derivative
ooo7o financial instruments (Note 7)
goooooo Changes in working capital:
gooooooogo — Decrease/(increase) in
gooo trade receivables
poobooood - Increase in prepayments,
gooooOooo deposits and other receivables
0ooooooooo — (Increase)/decrease in other
gooooog non-current receivables
oooooooooo — (Increase)/decrease in inventories
goooooooo - Increase in trade payables
gooooooo — Increase in other payables
googooo and accruals
gooooooooood — Increase/(decrease) in
contract liabilities
gooooooooooog — Decrease in other
non-current payables
ooogoooo Cash generated from operations

Annual Report 2018 0 O

2018
opoooo
RMB’000

1,539,774

(84,374)
54,014
1,285,837
19,941
8,394
16,965
(1,050)

9,260

(1,702)
19,329

27,787
46,142

(344)

2,939,973

34,592
(63,220)
(4,795)
(308,905)
158,219
38,474
329,777

(13,664)

3,110,451

2017
ooooo
RMB’000
ooooo
(Restated)

1,276,824

(28,503)
57,206
1,314,559
18,592
11,148
12,414
16,174
20,419

(2,825)

6,604

45,917
5,857

(4,663)
2,749,723

(26,621)
(27,486)
4,163
57,979
257,846
483,772
(205,146)

(179,560)

3,114,670
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O

32 DO0oooooogd 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

goboooobooboboobaonn
goobOoboboboboooo

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment and land use rights comprise:

2018 2017
oooood ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
00000002140 0 0150 Net book amount (Note 14 and Note 15) 325,399 83,329
gooooooooo Losses on disposal of property,
oooooooo plant and equipment and
oooggvro land use rights (Note 7) (15,915) (28,588)
goooooooo Increase in other receivables (238,096) (5,000)
goooooogoooao Proceeds from disposal of property,
oooooooooo plant and equipment and
land use rights 71,388 49,741

Jooooooooooooooao This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net

goo debt for each of periods presented.
oo oo
ooooad oooo oo
Borrowings Borrowings
(Non-Current) (Current) Total
ooooao opooag ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
0 020160 120 310 As of 31 December 2016 500,000 2,100,169 2,600,169
oooo Cash flows
ooboooooo Inflow from financing activities - 11,062,327 11,062,327
oooooooa Outflow from financing activities - (12,326,829) (12,326,829)
oooo Currency translations - (899) (899)
0020170 120 310 As of 31 December 2017 500,000 834,768 1,334,768
oooo Cash flows
ooboooooo Inflow from financing activities - 17,013,970 17,013,970
oooooooa Outflow from financing activities - (16,361,483) (16,361,483)
ooooao Non-cash movements (500,000) 500,000 -
oooo Currency translations - 471 471
0 020180 1200 310 As of 31 December 2018 - 1,987,726 1,987,726

0 0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2018 0 O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
]
33 00 33 COMMITMENTS
@ OO0OOO (@) Capital commitments
oo0o000o0opDOooodoodooo The Group’s capital commitments in respect of
oooooo property, plant and equipment are as follows:
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0ooooo Contracted but not provided for 591,645 400,084
(b DOODOOO (b) Operating lease commitments
oooooonon The Group is the lessee:
O0o0DooDoDoooDoooog The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
O000bO000o0ogogooooo agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum
ooobooooogoggooooo lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
ooooooo leases are as follows:
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
goooo Not later than 1 year 28,528 22,698
oogd Later than 1 year and
oooooag not later than 5 years 37,970 50,487
ooogd Later than 5 years 52 84,164
66,550 157,349
210 O 1000 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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() O0DDO0O0O0OD0OO

ooooboooooboood
goooooooboboooo
gooooooooooaooaoa
oo0o0000000ooooaoad
oooobooooboooo

O

33 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as

ooo follows:
2018 2017
ooooo oooono
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooogd Not later than 1 year 35,996 61,952
gooad Later than 1 year and
oooooo not later than 5 years 107,761 121,044
oooo Later than 5 years 25,056 31,872
168,813 214,868
O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
]

34 00000 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
ooooooooooDOooooooa The ultimate holding company of the Groupis 0 0 0 0 00O
00o0Dooooooomooooag 0000 (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (“UPE”), a
0oooooDooooOoooooon company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
oooDoooooooooooooo The directors of the Company are of the view that the
0oo0ooOoOobOoOoOoOooooon subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the

Group are regarded as related parties.
(@ OOODOOOOOO0O (@) Transactions with related parties:
Oo0oDoooooDoooo The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2018 2017
oad ogooooo goooo
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooooooo Sales of raw materials and (i)
finished goods:
goooboooo Subsidiaries of UPE 79,426 85,322
oooogooooo Joint ventures and associates of
oooag the Group 4,092 198,103
83,518 283,425
ooooooooo Purchase of raw materials and 0]
finished goods:
gooo UPE 14,632 13,178
ooooooooo Subsidiaries of UPE 3,532,781 3,473,843
ooooooooo Joint ventures and associates of
oooag the Group 650,751 683,560
4,198,164 4,170,581
ooooooo Logistics service expense: 0]
gooobooood Subsidiaries of UPE 19,462 15,584
212 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

00000000 O0man (@) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2018 2017
oo goooao gpooono
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ooooooo Consultation service income: (i)
oooo UPE 324 -
gboobooooad Subsidiaries of UPE 50,942 43,113
oooooooon Joint ventures and associates of
oooo the Group 7,394 9,276
58,660 52,389
ooooo Rental income: (ii)
ogoooooooo Subsidiaries of UPE 58,309 61,720
oopooooooo Joint ventures and associates of
oooao the Group 1,647 2,291
59,956 64,011

* goooooobooobooooo
ooooooooooo

ooo

(i) ooooo0oO0ooboO0o0o0no
oOoooooooooooono
goooooooobooboo
oo

(i) ooboooooooooono
oooooO0oO0oobO0oono

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(il

The above sales and purchases of finished goods and
raw materials, purchases, receipt of logistics service
and provision of consultation service are carried
out in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

[ Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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O
34 0000oddgao 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(b) OOOOOOO (b) Balances with related parties:
020180 120310000000 The Group has the following significant balances with its
Oo0oo0oooooooo related parties as at 31 December 2018:
2018 2017
ooooo ooooag
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo0oooooo Balances due from related parties:
oooooo Trade receivables
000230 (Note 23):
Oooooooooag Subsidiaries of UPE 6,183 3,186
ooooooo Prepayments and other receivables
000000024 (Note 24):
ooooooooa Subsidiaries of UPE 49,919 61,900
ooooooooo Joint ventures and associates of
ooog the Group 2,153 11,608
52,072 73,508
58,255 76,693
oooooooo Balances due to related parties:
oooooo Trade payables
0 0on29ri (Note 29):
ooooooooo Subsidiaries of UPE 334,058 247,596
oooogooooo Joint ventures and associates of
oooo the Group 26,207 20,426
360,265 268,022
OO0oDoDoDoDoooDooooog The carrying amounts of balances due from and due to
ooooOooooooooda related parties approximate their fair value as at balance
sheet dates.
214 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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0
34 00000000 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
O0O0oOooooad (c) Key management compensation:
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ooooooooono Salaries, bonus and other welfares 18,409 12,463
0000000000000 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
oooooooon (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2018 2017
goooo goooo
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ASSETS
oooog Non-current assets
0000000000 Investmentin a subsidiary 7,884,385 7,806,256
0000000000 Interestin an associated company 1,189 1,436
oooooooo Available-for-sale financial assets - 15,359
oooooo Financial assets at fair value through
ooooooo other comprehensive income
gooo 6,955 -
gooooooo Property, plant and equipment 2 6
7,892,531 7,823,057
oooad Current assets
oooogd Prepayments and other receivables
gooooo 578 871
oooooooo Amounts due from subsidiaries 402,454 303,764
gooooooo Cash and cash equivalents 215,078 39,191
618,110 343,826
gooo Total assets 8,510,641 8,166,883

0 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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35 0000000000000 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
0oo MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

@ ODOOOOOOOOOO (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2018 2017
oooog goooag
RMB’000 RMB’000
oo EQUITY
oo Share capital 39,764 39,764
oooono Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
oooo Other reserves 1,357,187 1,381,078
oooao Retained earnings 1,761,277 1,391,044
ooo Total equity 7,988,127 7,641,785
od LIABILITIES
ooooo Non-current liabilities
oad Borrowings - 500,000
ooood Current liabilities
opoooooo Other payables and accruals
oooo 8,788 12,030
od Borrowings 513,726 13,068
522,514 25,098
oono Total liabilities 522,514 525,098
ooooooo Total equity and liabilities 8,510,641 8,166,883
000000000 D0201903022 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
000o0oooonoooooooog Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were signed on its
oo behalf.
ooo ooo
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
oooo oooo
Executive Director Executive Director
216 u] [ u] 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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0
35 J00000o0oooooono 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
oo MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) DOOOooOooOoo (b) Reserve movements of the Company
oooo opooo opoo oD
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
ooooo opooo opooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
02017010100 Balance at 1 January 2017
oo 1,381,078 (16,984) 467,988 1,832,082
gooo Profit for the year - - 1,042,890 1,042,890
000000000 Fairvalue losses on AFS
ooooo - (3,435) - (3,435)
opoooooo Impairment of AFS - 20,419 - 20,419
00020160000 Dividends relating to 2016, paid - - (119,834) (119,834)
020170120310 0 Balance at 31 December 2017
0o 1,381,078 - 1,391,044 2,772,122
0201701203100 Balance at 31 December 2017
000000000  as originally presented 1,381,078 - 1,391,044 2,772,122
ooooooo Change in accounting policy - (20,419) 20,419 -
02018010100 Restated total equity as at
ooooo 1 January 2018 1,381,078 (20,419) 1,411,463 2,772,122
gooo Profit for the year - - 969,216 969,216
gopoooo Fair value losses on FVOCI
oooooo
oooooo - (3,472) - (3,472)
00020170000 Dividends relating to 2017, paid - - (619,402) (619,402)
020180120310 0 Balance at 31 December 2018
oo 1,381,078 (23,891) 1,761,277 3,118,464

O ooo 00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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O
36 DO OOOno 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(@ OOODODODODOOO (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
O0o0Do0oDoDoooDouooog The remuneration of every director and the chief
gooo executive is set out below:
gooa oo oo gooo oooo oo
Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total
ooooo ooooo goooo goooo ooooo
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
20180 2018
oooo Executive directors
ooooo Mr. Lo Chih-Hsied 000 O 66 445 3,927 - 4,438
ooooo Mr. Liu Xinhudd 000 O
0oo(o (Note(i) 48 1,344 1,972 240 3,604
ooooo Non-executive directors
ooooo Mr. Su Tsung-Mingd 0000 41 - - - 41
goooo Mr. CHEN Kuo-HuO 00D O
0ooo (Note(ii) 48 - - - 48
ooooooo Independent non-executive
directors
goooo Mr. Chen Sun-T&d 0000 258 - - - 258
ooooo Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
goooo 258 - - - 258
goooo Mr. Lo Petef] 0 OO0 258 - - - 258
goooo Mr. Chen JohnnyJ 0000 247 - - - 247
1,224 1,789 5,899 240 9,152
218 O 1000 ] 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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OO0Oo0doOoonoad
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

O

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

ooo (Continued)
oooo oo oo oooo oooo oo
Discretionary Housing
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance Total
ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo ooooo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20170 2017
oooo Executive directors
goooo Mr. Lo Chih-Hsierd 0 0 0 O 163 314 4,030 - 4,507
goooo Mr. Liu Xinhudd 0000
ogooo (Note(i) 35 672 2,613 240 3,560
goooo Mr. CHEN Kuo-Huo 00 0O
ooaoo (Note(ii) 20 368 - - 388
ooooo Non-executive directors
0oooo Mr. Su Tsung-Mingd 0O O O 39 - - - 39
ooooo Mr. Hou Jung-Lungd DO OO
0oaofo (Notei)) 17 - - - 17
gopooo Mr. CHEN Kuo-Huo 00 0O
0ooo (Note(ii) 23 299 - 72 394
ooooooo Independent non-executive
directors
gopooo Mr. Chen Sun-T&J 00 00 246 - - - 246
gooaoo Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
goooo 246 - - - 246
gopooo Mr. Lo Petet] 0 0 0 0 246 - - - 246
0oooo Mr. Chen Johnnyd 0O O O 235 - - - 235
1,270 1,653 6,643 312 9,878
ooo Note:

(i) 020170302500 000

(ii) 0201707010 000000
ooooooo

(i) 02017050190 000

(i) Appointed on 25 March 2017.

(i

Re-designated from an executive

executive director on 1 July 2017.

(i)

00 O Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2018 0 O

Retired on 19 May 2017.

director as a non-
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36 U040 O0O0odond 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(@ OODODODOOODOOODOO (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
0o0do (Continued)

00020180 02017012031
ooodoboooooooooo
ooooooooobooboooo
obooo0oobDoobooobooon
ooooooobooobooooo
goooood

obooooboobooooo
oboob0oobDooboonbooon
goocoboooooomuooobo
obooooboobooooo
ooooooobooooooo

goooboooooooooo
goboboobooooboooo

220 0 ooo 0000 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no arrangement was in place under which a director
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year.
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goooooooo

gooo

Company name

gooa
gooooooooao

Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd.

oooao
gooOooO0ooOoooooo

(Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd.*)

pooooooooooo

(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang)
Food Co., Ltd.*)

pooooooooooo

(Chengdu President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooocoooo

(Kunshan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooocoooo

(Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooo

(Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp.*)

goooooo
goooo
Country/place and

date of incorporation

Directly owned
oooo

20060 60 2900
Cayman Islands,
29 June 2006

Indirectly owned
gooao

199801 301 1000
Shanghai, PRC.
10 March 1998

oooooo
19920110 130
Urumgi, PRC.
13 January 1992

gooo
1993040 140

Chengdu, PRC.
14 April 1993

oooo
19930 50 140
Kunshan, PRC.
14 May 1993

oooo
19930 70 70
Wuhan, PRC.
7 July 1993

oooo

19941 1201500
Guangzhou, PRC.

5 December 1994

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

0o00ooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

910,080,0000 [

USD910,080,000

1,090,670,00000 O

USD1,090,670,000

37,500,00000 O

USD37,500,000

65,000,0000 O

USD65,000,000

96,000,00001

USD96,000,000

59,600,0000 O

USD59,600,000

75,000,00000 O

USD75,000,000

gooao

Equity interest held

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

00opooooooo
Principal activities/
place of operation

goooooooo

Investment holding/
Cayman Islands

ooooood

Investment holding/PRC

ooooooooooo
0ooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages, foods and
instant noodles/PRC

gooooooo
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

pooooooo
0ooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

gooooooo
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

pooooooo
0ooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

Annual Report 2018 0 O



gooo

Company name

gooooooooa

(Shenyang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

ooOoooooooo
(Hefei President Enterprises
Co., Ltd.¥)
ooooooooooo
(Harbin President Enterprises
Co., Ltd.*)
oooooooooo

(Beijing President Enterprises
Drinks Co., Ltd.*)

oooooooooo

(Nanchang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

0o0oooooooo

(Fuzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooo

(Zhengzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooooo

(President (Shanghai)
Trading Co., Ltd.¥)

Annual Report 2018 0 O

goopobooo
ooooo
Country/place and

date of incorporation

oooo
199501 60 150
Shenyang, PRC.
15 June 1995

gooo

19980 201 230
Hefei, PRC.

23 February 1998

ooooo

19980 2001 260
Harbin, PRC.

26 February 1998

gooo

20010 20 200
Beijing, PRC.

20 February 2001

oooo
20010 500 180
Nanchang, PRC.
18 May 2001

oooo

20010 70190
Fuzhou, PRC.

19 July 2001

gooo
20020 60 250
Zhengzhou, PRC.
25 June 2002

oooo

20050 100 170
Shanghai, PRC.

17 October 2005

oooooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

39,900,0000 0

USD39,900,000

60,000,0000 O

USD60,000,000

29,200,0000 0

USD29,200,000

52,900,00000 O

USD52,900,000

44,000,0000 O

USD44,000,000

20,000,0000 O

UsD20,000,000

37,000,0000 O

USD37,000,000

8,600,0000 O

UsD8,600,000

oooo

Equity interest held

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

00000000o
Principal activities/
place of operation

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

gooooooao
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooooooo
oo

Trading of beverages,
instant noodles and
food products/PRC
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oooo

Company name

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ooooooo
ooooo
Country/place and
date of incorporation

0o00ooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

Od00o00ooond
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oooo

Equity interest held

O

oopooooooo
Principal activities/
place of operation

2018 2017
oooooooooo oo 1,000,0000 O O 100% 100% oopooooooo
20060 1201 280
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.*) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
o0oooOoOoooOooo oooo 30,000,000C1 O 100% 100% oooooooo
20070 110 80 oooooo
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.* 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
oooooooo oo 1,761,9200 O 100% 100% ooooooo
20080 601 50
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong USD1,761,920 Investment holding/
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Hong Kong
poooooooooo oooo 4,150,0000 O 100% 100% oooooooooo
20090 200 2001
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.®) 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
oOo0oooooooooo oo 4,963,255,6000] O 100% 100% ooooooo
20090 40 300
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,963,255,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
oooooooooooo oooo 150,0000 O 100% 100% oooo
oooo 20090 500 1200
(Champ Green (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.*) 12 May 2009
oooooooooo oooo 30,000,00000 O 100% 100% oooooooo
2010090 10 oooooo
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd. 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
poooooooooo oooo 00 01,000,0000 100% 100% ooooooo
oooo 20100 800 2400
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010

Culture Limited Company*)

] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2018 0 O
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gooo

Company name

oooooooooo
(Zhanjiang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
ooOoooooooo
(Nanning President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
oooooooooo

(Changchun President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooOoo

(Akesu President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

goooOoooooo

(Taizhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

goooOoooooo

(Chongging President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

goooOoooooo

(Baiyin President Enterprises
Co., Ltd.*)

goooOo0oOooobooooo

(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly
Century Co., Ltd. ¥

Annual Report 2018 0 O

ooooooo
ooooo
Country/place and
date of incorporation

oooo

20100 1000 280
Zhanjiang, PRC.

28 October 2010

gooo

20100 110 160
Nanning, PRC.

16 November 2010

oooo

201000 120 20
Changchun, PRC.

2 December 2010

gooono

20100 120 150
Akesu, PRC.

15 December 2010

gooo
2011010 280
Taizhou, PRC.
28 January 2011

oooo
20110 20 160
Chongging, PRC.
16 February 2011

oooo

20110 20 240
Baiyin, PRC.

24 February 2011

oooo
20030 801 10
Shanghai, PRC.
1 August 2003

oooooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

25,000,0000 0

USD25,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

20,000,0000 0

USD20,000,000

20,000,0000 O

USD20,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

33,600,0000 0

USD33,600,000

20,000,00000 O

UsD20,000,000

00 060,000,00000

RMB60,000,000

oooo

Equity interest held

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

00000000o
Principal activities/
place of operation

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

gooooooao
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooogooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

goooo0ooooo

Wholesale of forage and
fertilizer/PRC

gooooooo
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooooooo
oooooo

Wholesale and retall of pre-
packaged food and dairy
products/PRC

gooooooo
gooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

ooooooo

Leasing business/PRC



gooo

Company name

oooooooooo
oooo

(Uni-President Shanghai
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.¥)

oooooooooo

(Hainan President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*

ooooooooooo
(Shijiazhuang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*
oooooooooo
(Jinan President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*
oooooooooo

(Guiyang President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.

gooooooooOoooo

(Wuxue President Enterprises

Mineral Water Co. Ltd.*)
goooOoooooooo
(President (Shanghai) Private

Label Marketing &

Trading Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooo

(Hangzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.

goooooo
goooo
Country/place and

date of incorporation

oooo
20030 700 1800
Shanghai, PRC.
18 July 2003

gooo
201103080

Chengmai, PRC.
8 March 2011

ooooo
20100 110 150
Shijiazhuang, PRC.

15 November 2010

gooo
2011040 180
Jinan, PRC.
18 April 2011

gooo
201107060

Guiyang, PRC.
6 July 2011

gooo
201107060
Wuxue, PRC.
6 July 2011

gooo
20110 60 280
Shanghai, PRC.
28 June 2011

oooo
20110 60 210
Hangzhou, PRC.
21 June 2011

0o00ooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

00020,000,0000

RMB20,000,000

22,000,0000 O

USD22,000,000

35,000,00000 O

USD35,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

4,800,00000 O

USD4,800,000

950,0000 O

USD950,000

85,000,00000 O

USD85,000,000

gooao

Equity interest held

2018

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2017

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

00opooooooo
Principal activities/
place of operation

ooooood

Investment holding/PRC

goooooooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

gooooooo

Manufacturing mineral
water/PRC

goopooooobDoono
goo

Wholesale of pre-packaged
food and dairy products/
PRC

oooooooo
0ooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

Annual Report 2018 0 O



gooo

Company name

gooooooooa

(Xuzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

go0ooooOooooo

(President (Kunshan)
Trading Co., Ltd.¥)

gooooooooo

(Henan President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

ooooooooooooo

(Wuyuan President Enterprises
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooo

(Shaanxi President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

gooooooooo

(Jiangsu President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

goo0ooODoOOoOooD
oooo

(Changbaishan Mountain
President Enterprises (Jilin)
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*)

ooOooooomoooo
oooo

(President Enterprises (Kunshan)
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.*)

Annual Report 2018 0 O

goopobooo
ooooo
Country/place and

date of incorporation

oooo
2011090 20
Xuzhou, PRC.

2 September 2011

oooo
20120 30 280
Kunshan, PRC.
28 March 2012

oooo
201203090
Henan, PRC.
9 March 2012

oooo
2012050 300

Wuyuan, PRC.
30 May 2012

oooo
201207060

Shaanxi, PRC.
6 July 2012

oooo
2012011050
Nanjing, PRC.

5 November 2012

oooo

20130 30 150
Jilin, PRC.

15 March 2013

oooo
201304090

Kunshan, PRC.
9 April 2013

oooooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

33,000,0000 0

USD33,000,000

10,000,0000 O

USD10,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

1,700,0000 O

USD1,700,000

50,000,0000 O

USD50,000,000

30,000,0000 O

USD30,000,000

000 180,000,0000

RMB180,000,000

0 0 060,000,0000

RMB60,000,000

oooo

Equity interest held

2018

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2017

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

00000000o
Principal activities/
place of operation

gooooogooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

ooo0oo0000oo

Wholesale of pre-packaged
food products/PRC

oooooooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

oooooooooooo
ooo

Wholesale of pre-packaged
food and dairy products/
PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo
Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
oooooooo
Manufacturing mineral
water/PRC
oooooo

Real estate/PRC



gooo

Company name

gooooooooa

(Ningxia President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

ooooooooooo

(Uni-President Enterprises
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.*

oooooooooo

(Shanxi President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*

gooooooooo

(Uni-President Enterprises
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd*)

gooooooooOoooo
oooa

(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi)
Tomato Products Technology

Co., Ltd.*

oooooooooo
oooo

(Uni-President Enterprises
(Shanghai) Drink&Food
Co., Ltd.¥)

gooooooooooo

(Uni-President Trading
(Hubei) Co., Ltd.*)

goooobooooo

(Uni-President Enterprises
(TianJin) Co., Ltd*)

ooooooo
ooooo
Country/place and
date of incorporation

gooo
2013040 220

Yinchuan, PRC.
22 April 2013

oooooo
201305090
Hohhot, PRC.
9 May 2013

oooo
201309050
Jinzhong, PRC.
5 September 2013

gooo

20010 100 140
Shanghai, PRC.

14 October 2001

ooooao
2013011010
Hutubi, PRC.
1 November 2013

oooo
20140 500 150
Shanghai, PRC.
15 May 2014

gooo

2004090 230
Hubei, PRC.

23 September 2004

gooo
2014080 150
Tianjin, PRC.
15 August 2014

0o00ooooo
Issued and
paid-up capital

16,000,0000 O

USD16,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

40,000,0000 O

USD40,000,000

30,000,00000 O

USD30,000,000

80,000,00001 O

UsD80,000,000

[0 0 0 96,000,0000

RMB96,000,000

12,000,00000 O

UsD12,000,000

gooao

Equity interest held

2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

00opooooooo
Principal activities/
place of operation

goooocooooa

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

goooocooooa

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

oooooooooo

Wholesale of pre-packaged
food products/PRC

0o0oooooooo
Manufacturing and sale of

beverages/PRC

oooooooo
oooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages and instant
noodles/PRC

gooooooooo

Wholesale of pre-packaged
food products/PRC

gooooooooo

Manufacturing and sale of
beverages/PRC

Annual Report 2018 0 O
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37 QO obood 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

goooooo
gooo goooo gooooooo gooo goooooobooa
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/

Company name

date of incorporation

paid-up capital

Equity interest held

place of operation

2018 2017
gooooooood gooo 6,000,0000 O 100% 100% gooooooood
20150 30 100

(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co., Ltd*) 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC

gooooooo gooo 0 0 0 100,000,000C1 100% 100% gooooooooa
oooo 20090 600 90

(Yantai Tongli Beverage Yantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Industries Co., Ltd*) 9 June 2009 beverages/PRC

oooo@o)pooo 0ooo 1,200,0000 O 100% 100% ooooooooooo
oooo 199500 120 270

(President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD1,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of

(Kunshan) Food Products
Technology Co., Ltd.*)

27 December 1995

oooooobooooooooooo
gobooobooobbooobooon
goooooooobboooooboo

oood

* ooooooobooooboooboooDo

gooooo

228 O [ O [
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seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong
are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the
Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of

the Company in translating the Chinese name.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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